
Board of Supervisors Meeting     *    December 3, 2025    *     Page 1 

TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
REGULAR MEETING 

December 3, 2024 – 4:00 P.M. (Tuesday) 
197 MAIN STREET 

TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA 24651 

Members of the public also have an option to participate by telephone by calling (425) 436-6388, 
and entering "836650" as the access code when prompted. 

Time Subject Pg 
6:00 pm 1. Call to Order

2. Pledge and Invocation
3. Welcome
4. Consideration of approving the agenda format (additions/deletions)
5. Approval of meeting minutes from November 7, 2024 4 

6:05 pm 6. Consent Calendar
(All items on the consent calendar are considered to be routine matters. The following
items may be enacted by one motion, with the concurrence of the Board of Supervisors,
a member may request that an item be removed for further discussion)

A. Approval of Warrants
B. County Departments - Transfer the following amounts from the

Contingent Expenditures and Grant Account No. 91050-7041 to various
department accounts as shown on the attached table.

C. Ratify poll to grant refund of $4679.02 to Wells Fargo for Merchant’s
Capital tax

D. Ratify poll for donation of $1270.34 from contingency to Town of
Pocahontas for parcel 006A2A0062 real estate tax reimbursement

E. Transfer of $58,673.96 to IDA to fund FY25 tax incentives as budgeted

17 
19 

6:10 pm 7. Department Reports
► Kenneth Dunford – Engineering Report

6:20pm 
6:25pm 
6:30pm 
6:35pm 

8. Public Hearings
► Solid Waste Management Plan amendment
► Route 19/460 traffic improvements (RAISE grant)
► Request for real estate tax exemption – Outside Dreams
► Ordinance for holiday stipend for EMS employees - private donation

20 
21 
22 
23 

1

callto:425)%20436-6388


Board of Supervisors Meeting     *    December 3, 2025    *     Page 2 
 

6:40 pm 9.  Special Presentations 
     ► Resolution – Carter Creasy 

 
24 

6:50 pm 10. Citizen Comments – Scheduled 
This portion of the agenda is set aside for citizens wishing to comment 
on County issues who have previously requested to speak at the 
meeting pursuant to the three (3) minute limit to communications. 

 

6:55 pm 11. Citizen Comments – Unscheduled 
(Two (2) minutes per speaker) 

 

7:00 pm 12.  Administrative/Financial/County Projects Update 
1. Consider extending State of Emergency until January 10, 2025 
2. Storm recovery update 

a. Residential damage estimates 
3. Landfill update: 

a. Construction Update 
4. Approve FY25 VDH service agreement 
5. Request for additional drug court funding 
6. Consider surplus of retiring Major Harold Heatley’s service weapon 

(Glock 9mm #CBKA905) and allow him to purchase for $1.00 
pursuant to Sec.59-148.3 of the Code of Virginia  

7. Discussion regarding SROs 
8. Other 
9. Appointments: 

a. Airport Authority 
b. CMCS 
c. Community Corrections 
d. CPMT 
e. CPPDC 
f. Fire/Rescue Board 
g. Heart of Appalachia 
h. IDA 
i. New River Highlands RC&D Council 
j. PSA 
k. Social Services 
l. Soil & Water 
m. Tourism 
n. Trailblazers 
o. VASAP 

 
 
 
 
 
 
25 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
27 
29 
30 
31 
33 
35 
36 
37 
39 
40 
41 
43 
44 
46 
47 

7:30 pm 
 

13. Board Concerns 
 

 Supervisor Presley: 
► Sanders House 
 
Supervisor Plaster: 
►  
 
Supervisor Cruey: 
►   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2



Board of Supervisors Meeting     *    December 3, 2025    *     Page 3 
 

Supervisor Gillespie: 
► Legal representation regarding insulin litigation 

 
Supervisor Hrovatic:  
►   

 
 
 
 
 
 

7:45 pm 14. Executive/Closed Meeting – Pursuant to Virginia Code Section 2.2-3711 
► A(29) Evaluation of qualifications for school facilities engineer 
► A(29) Contract negotiations with PSA for Jonah Water Project 
► A(  5) Expansion/incentives for Southwest Compressors 
► A(  5) Expansion/incentives for RNG 
► A(29) Contract negotiations with BSB re: leachate 
► A(  5) Expansion/incentive for Project FIND 

 

9:15 pm 15. Return/Certification/Report of Action (if necessary)  
9:20 pm 16. Other business as may properly come before the Board  
9:30 pm 17. Adjourn 

The meeting is adjourned until Tuesday, January 7, 2025 at 4:00 p.m. 
 

 

3



VIRGINIA: AT THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS HELD NOVEMBER 7, 2024 AT FOUR O'CLOCK P.M. IN THE 
TAZEWELL COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, 197 MAIN STREET, 
TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA 24651 

PRESENT: ANDY HROVATIC, CHAIRMAN 
AARON GILLESPIE, VICE-CHAIRPERSON 
KYLE CRUEY, MEMBER  
CHUCK PRESLEY, MEMBER 
SHANNA PLASTER, MEMBER 
C. ERIC YOUNG, COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR
CHASE D. COLLINS, COUNTY ATTORNEY
SUSAN JEWELL, EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT
MEMBERS OF THE PRESS:  JIM TALBERT, RICHLANDS NEWS & PRESS;
WARREN HINKLE, THE VOICE

ABSENT:  None 

MINUTES 

Chairman, Andy Hrovatic called the regular meeting to order and presided with all other members present. 

Supervisor Presley led The Pledge of Allegiance to the United States flag followed by the invocation given by 
Supervisor Cruey. 

Chairman Hrovatic welcomed those in attendance and citizens who were participating by conference call. 
Citizens were able to call in and participate in the meeting by calling (425) 436-6388 and entering the access 
code 836650. 

AGENDA APPROVED AS AMENDED 
The Chairperson called for any additions to the agenda. 

Chase Collins, County Attorney, noted that a revised agenda contains several additional items to be addressed 
in the meeting. 

Upon motion of Supervisor Plaster, seconded by Supervisor Presley and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one against the same, the Tazewell County Board of 
Supervisors approved the November 7, 2024 amended agenda with additions/deletions, a copy of which is 
available at the County Administration Office, 197 Main Street, Tazewell, Virginia 24651. 

MINUTES APPROVED AS WRITTEN 
Upon motion of Supervisor Presley, seconded by Supervisor Plaster and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one against the same, the Tazewell County Board of 
Supervisors hereby approves the minutes from the October 1, 2024 meeting.  A copy is available in the County 
Administration Office, 197 Main Street, Tazewell, Virginia 24651. 

4



 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
Mr. Collins asked to amend the Consent Calendar to include an abatement regarding McClure Bulk Transfer, 
Inc. in the amount of $18,632.00. 

Mr. Young asked to amend the Consent Calendar, stating that the item entitled “Ratify poll for $50K for 
landfill” be changed to “Ratify poll for a $50,000.00 advancement to Mercer County, West Virginia landfill 
to pay for diverted waste from the Tazewell County landfill” 

Upon motion of Supervisor Gillespie seconded by Supervisor Cruey and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0 with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one against the same, the Tazewell County Board of 
Supervisors hereby approves amending Item D of the Consent Calendar to read “Ratify poll for a $50,000.00 
advancement to Mercer County, West Virginia landfill to pay for diverted waste from the Tazewell County 
landfill”. 

Mr. Collins spoke regarding Item F, stating that Mr. Murray is a family member and preferred to leave the 
decision up to the Board. 

Supervisor Gillespie asked to remove Item G for a separate vote, stating he feels he has a conflict with the 
company in question. 

Upon motion of Supervisor Gillespie seconded by Supervisor Presley and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0 with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one against the same, the Tazewell County Board of 
Supervisors hereby approves Consent Calendar Items A through F, and the Warrants as amended.  The County 
Administrator is authorized to issue warrants in accordance with this action and said warrants shall be 
converted to negotiable checks by the Treasurer of Tazewell County, Virginia. 

Upon motion of Supervisor Cruey seconded by Supervisor Presley and adopted by a vote of 4 to 0 with all 
members present and Supervisor Gillespie abstaining from the vote, the Tazewell County Board of Supervisors 
hereby approves Consent Calendar Items G. 

 

 

Consent Calendar 
(All items on the consent calendar are considered to be routine matters. The following items may be 
enacted by one motion, with the concurrence of the Board of Supervisors, a member may request that 
an item be removed for further discussion) 

A. Approval of Warrants 
B. County Departments - Transfer the following amounts from the Contingent 

Expenditures and Grant Account No. 91050-7041 to various department accounts as 
shown on the attached table. 

C. Ratify poll to designate November 8, 2024 as Fort Maiden Spring National Society 
DAR Day by resolution 

D. Ratify poll for $50k for landfill 
E. Consider bond reimbursement from Engineering to Four Seasons Self Storage in the 

amount of $2033.78 
F. Approve decal tax reimbursement for Ralph G. Murray 

5



Source        Check #       To Acct    Amt       Description 
T. Shea Cook 10949 31020-3001 $25.60 FOIA payment 

Bedford County, VA 9085976 31020-5510 $614.30 Reimbursement 
Town of Richlands  7301-3099 $247.00 Reimbursement 

Doug/Ginger Branton  7301-3099 $25.00 Donation 
Cecil Gillespie  7301-6012 $1000.00 Donation 
Natasha Hunt  7301-1150 $200.00 Reimbursement 

Norfolk/Southern Corp 9480370 032040-5510-1 $15,000.00 Donation for EMT training 
CMCS 245423 31020-1150 $1268.24 CITAC overtime 

American Oversight, Inc. 1741 31020-6001 $60.00 Office supplies/FOIA response 
VaCo 624366 31020-6009 $2528.99 Repairs to TCSO E350 

Virginia APCO 1047 035600-8109-16 $500.00 Donation 
VaCo  31020-6009 $5287.44 Repairs to 2020 Explorer (VIN 

2991) 
Intrado 41937 35600-8109-33 $8637.74 VDEM grant refund 

Black Knight Infoserve, 
LLC 

440943 12090-6001 $250.00 Provide copy of 2024 R/E 
records 

  
DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
Coronado update 
Mr. Harwood, Director of engineering for Coronado presented information regarding current and future mining 
plans and explained how Tazewell County will benefit from the coal severance tax. 
 
DAR resolution 
Upon motion of Supervisor Gillespie, seconded by Supervisor Presley and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one against the same, the Tazewell County Board of 
Supervisors hereby approves a resolution to the DAR.  A copy is available in the County Administration Office, 
197 Main Street, Tazewell, Virginia 24602. 

 
Capital Waste 
A representative of Capital Waste Management addressed the Board and introduced a new employee who will 
be managing landfill operations. 
 
Engineering – Kenneth Dunford 
Mr. Dunford advised that roughly 6.5 acres of the new landfill cell will be ready for use by Thanksgiving, 
according to information provided to him by Republic. 
 
Mr. Dunford pointed out an error in his report.  He stated he is asking for funds to pay Bland/Wythe JTPSA for 
their diversion of waste to NRV landfill in the amount of $4,370.97. 
 
Upon motion of Supervisor Hrovatic, seconded by Supervisor Presley and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one against the same, the Tazewell County Board of 
Supervisors hereby approves $4,370.97 to pay BWJPSA for diversion of waste to Bland/Wythe landfill. 
 
Jim Accurso – SBA Disaster Assistance 
Mr. Accurso shared information about SBA assistance available following the recent storm event. 
 

6



Kathy Joy-Brosius - FEMA 
Ms. Brosius introduced herself and shared information about the FEMA DRC site and the services offered at 
the site. 
 

EXECUTIVE/CLOSED MEETING 
Upon motion of Supervisor Hrovatic, seconded by Supervisor Presley and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof, the Board enters into an Executive/Closed meeting and invites all 
persons necessary to conduct business in this session, pursuant to Virginia Code Section 2.2-3711. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
RETURN/CERTIFICATION/REPORT OF ACTION – 6:47 pm 

The Board of Supervisors returned to public session and Chairman Hrovatic read the following certification: 
 

CERTIFICATION OF 
EXECUTIVE/CLOSED MEETING 

TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
WHEREAS, the Tazewell County Board of Supervisors has convened an executive/closed meeting on this date 
pursuant to an affirmative vote and in accordance with The Virginia Freedom of Information Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, 2.2-3711 of the Code of Virginia requires a certification by the Board of Supervisors that such 
executive/closed meeting was conducted in conformity with Virginia law; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Tazewell County Board of Supervisors hereby certifies that, 
to the best of each member's knowledge, (i) that only public business matters lawfully exempted from open 
meeting requirements by Virginia law were discussed in the executive/closed meeting to which this certification 
resolution applies, and (ii) only such public business matters as were identified in the motion convening the 
closed meeting were heard, discussed or considered by the Tazewell County Board of Supervisors. The 
Chairman called for a roll call vote with the following vote hereby recorded. 
 
The Chair called for a roll call vote on the Certification: 

Ayes: Five (5) 
Nays: None (0) 
Absent: None (0) 
Absent during vote: None (0) 
Report of Action: Three (3) 

Executive/Closed Meeting – Pursuant to Virginia Code Section 2.2-3711 
► A(  3) Property acquisition near Tazewell 
► A(29) Contract negotiations with Appalachian Regional Commission 

regarding $1m grant for project Jonah 
► A( 5) Project FIND 
► A(29) Evaluation of qualifications for school facilities engineer 
► A(29) Contract negotiations with PSA for Jonah Water Project 
► A(5) RNG 
► A(3) Property Acquisition in Burkes Garden Virginia 

7



ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 
School facilities 
Upon motion of Supervisor Plaster, seconded by Supervisor Presley and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one voting against the same, the Tazewell County Board 
of Supervisors hereby approves (1) ratification of the Board’s  previous resolution support financing of new 
school construction and find each of the following firms qualified:  (a) Thompson & Litton; (b) LPA and (c) 
SEH and (2) that the Board issue a letter to TCPS requesting that all parties proceed with future procurement 
for school construction. 
 
Property acquisition 
Upon motion of Supervisor Gillespie, seconded by Supervisor Cruey and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one voting against the same, the Tazewell County Board 
of Supervisors hereby authorizes the County Administrator to negotiate with residents along Round Mountain 
Road for purposes of securing a temporary recurring easement and approves up to $6,500.00 from Emergency 
Management funds for the purpose of purchasing and installing a gate to secure the right-of-way along Round 
Mountain Road.. 
 
PSA agreement 
Upon motion of Supervisor Hrovatic, seconded by Supervisor Plaster and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one voting against the same, the Tazewell County Board 
of Supervisors hereby approves the adoption of a Resolution to sequester One Millon Dollars in reserves for 
the purpose of securing a grant agreement with the Appalachian Regional Commission and pursuant thereto, 
direct the Treasurer of Tazewell County, Virginia, the Chairman of the Board and the County Administrator to 
take all actions necessary and property to achieve the purposes therein.. 

 
SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
Warhawk Park 
Kandwani Patterson presented information about the purpose and progress of the park. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
None 
 
CITIZEN COMMENTS – SCHEDULED 
David Balenger, Witten Mill Road, North Tazewell, spoke regarding an issue he has with neighborhood dogs 
barking excessively.  The Board discussed the difficulty of enforcing a noise ordinance.  Mr. Young and Mr. 
Collins advised the speaker to seek private legal counsel 

 
CITIZEN COMMENTS - UNSCHEDULED 
Veterans Parade 
Mr. Wicks asked for funding for the Tazewell Veterans Day parade. 
 
Upon motion of Supervisor Hrovatic, seconded by Supervisor Gillespie and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with 
all members present and voting in favor thereof and no one voting against the same, the Tazewell County Board 
of Supervisors hereby approves funding of the Tazewell County Veterans Parage (to be paid to Tazewell Torday 
for the purpose of expenses for the parade).  Funds shall come from district funds as follows: 
 

  

8



$  200.00 Northwestern 
$  600.00 Southern 
$1000.00 Westher 
$  600.00 Eastern 
$  600.00 Northern 
$3000.00 Total 
 
Outside Dreams 
Howie Mitchell, Tazewell, a representative of Outside Dreams, asked to be granted non-profit local tax-exempt 
status for 197 acres being used in connection with their existing business which cares for disabled individuals.  
He stated the property will be used for taking disabled individuals safely into nature. 
 
Mr. Collins pointed out that a public hearing is necessary prior to making the tax-exempt determination and 
asked that the documentation provided by Mr. Mitchell be made a part of these minutes. 
 
Upon motion of Supervisor Gillespie, seconded by Supervisor Presley and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one voting against the same, the Tazewell County Board 
of Supervisors hereby approves holding a public hearing to gather public comment regarding the tax-exempt 
request from Outside Dreams. 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE/FINANCIAL/COUNTY PROJECTS UPDATE 
Consider extending State of Emergency 
County Administrator, Eric Young, announced that county officials are still evaluating damages caused by the 
recent storm and asked that the state of emergency be extended until December 3, 2024. 
 
Upon motion of Supervisor Plaster, seconded by Supervisor Presley and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one voting against the same, the Tazewell County Board 
of Supervisors hereby approves extending the state of emergency until December 3, 2024. 
 
Storm recovery update 
Damage estimates 
Private damage 
Mr. Young shared slides depicting estimated damages to private agricultural property in the county at 
approximately $10m. 

 
He stated that 129 homes reported damage, with 15 of those homes receiving major damage or were destroyed.  
He reported that to date, approximately 1580 residents have made contact with FEMA online or at the Disaster 
Recovery Center inside the Administration Building. 
 

Public damage 
Mr. Young announced that the PSA suffered approximately $249,000.00 in damages. 
 
Mr. Young stated that damage to county property included the animal shelter ($4K), courthouse roof ($15K), 
fire department equipment ($12K), Fire Department building damage ($6K), the Morris Knob power line 
($10K), county road damage ($20K), TCSO roof ($4K) and damage to the liner in the new cell at the landfill 
($300K), modification of split cell ($150K).  He said damage to the liner at the new landfill is the biggest expense 

9



in addition to approximately $300,000.00 in construction and change order costs.  He advised that there may be 
some FEMA funding to cover some of those repairs. 
 
He stated there will be a loss of revenue from the diversion of waste from Wythe and Bland Counties because 
Tazewell County won’t be receiving approximately $280,000.00 from that source as it otherwise would have 
received. 
 
Mr. Young advised that the current leachate line can only handle approximately 16,000 gallons per day and the 
extraordinary amount of rain during the storm forced us to have to pay for the excess leachate to be hauled to 
Bluefield, West Virginia at a cost of $282,000.00, a portion which is reimbursable from FEMA. 
 
Budget amendment request 
Mr. Young outlined some unexpected revenue the county has had in 2025, which will help with the need for 
additional funds.  He detailed unexpected refunds from the reginal jail and state Department of Health, as well 
as higher than expected revenues from machinery and tools taxes and Bristol Casino.  Nevertheless, he asked 
for asked for $600,000.00.  He said he is hesitant to dip solely into the reserve account, ultimately asking for 
$300,000.00 from reserves and $300,000.00 from contingency.  He advised that a large portion of the damages 
are reimbursable by FEMA and VDEM but the time frame for that is as long as two years; therefore, he asked 
the Board to “cash flow” the storm related expenses. 
 
Mr. Young asked for a supplemental appropriation amendment to the current budget to account for the additional 
revenues and additional in the amount of $600,000.00 for the following: 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank  

10



 

Mr. Young stated there should be no requirement to advertise this amendment because it is under the threshold 
for doing so.  Although not included in the proposed supplemental appropriation, he strongly suggested 
purchasing a stormwater pump and a second leachate tank in FY26. 
 
Supervisor Cruey inquired as to whether the additional money can come from the TCPS school facilities fund.  
Mr. Young advised it would be permissible to do so but TCPS might need to use that money themselves in light 
of the unknown damages the school buildings might have sustained as a result of the storm.  Mr. Young also 
suggested not taking the entire amount from contingency since its so early in the budget year. 

 
Upon motion of Supervisor Hrovatic, seconded by Supervisor Presley and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one voting against the same, the Tazewell County Board 
of Supervisors hereby approves the proposed FY25 Supplemental Budget Amendment as presented except that 
$300,000.00 will be taken from contingency and only $300,000.00 will be taken from reserves. 

Proposed FY25 Supplemental Appropriation

FY25 Revenue Adjustment of FY25 General Fund Revenues 981,000$    
Increase Machinery & Tools Tax 400,000$              
Increase Jail Reconcilation 348,000$              
Increase Health Department Reconciliation 150,000$              

** Increase in Casino Revenues 43,000$                 
VaCorp Reimbursement - BOS Properties 40,000$                 
FY25 Supplemental Transfer and Adjustments 600,000$    
Reserve Fund 500,000$              
Contingency 100,000$              
Total Additional Revenues and Transfers 1,581,000$ 

FY25 Supplemental Appropriations (Expenditures) Pot. FEMA Pot. VDEM County

FY25 Supplemental Appropriations to Landfill Fund 1,350,833$       
Construction Costs - Repair Change Orders 300,000$              $300,000
Modifications to Split cell 150,000$               112,500$            $15,000 $22,500
FY25 Wythe Bland Revenue Loss - Diverted (WBJPSA) 278,833$              $278,833

Additonal fee for Wythe/Bland Diversion (WBJPSA) 40,000$                 30,000$              $4,000 $6,000
Increase in Leachate Costs (HELENE) 282,000$               211,500$            $28,200 $42,300
Emergency Storm Water Pump for new landfill cell 50,000$                 $50,000
Diverting Tazewell County trash to Mercer County 250,000$               187,500$            $25,000 $37,500

FY25 Supplemental Appropriations to Emergency Management 201,500$          
Emergency Management Vehicle 70,000$                 $70,000
Emergency Management Equipment 15,000$                 $15,000
Fire Department Fuel and Equipment Assistance 25,000$                 $25,000
Agricultural fencing replacement assitance program 20,000$                 $20,000
Repair County Roads 20,000$                 $20,000
Other BoS Properties and FDs (Sheet 2) 51,500$                 8,625$                1,150$                      $41,725
FY25 Supplemental Appropriation to School Board

** Tazewell County School Bd (2/3 Casino) 28,667$            $28,667

FEMA  and VDEM  funding is potential not certain 550,125$            $73,350 $957,525

Total New Appropriations 1,581,000$ $1,581,000

11



 
Landfill update 
Construction Update 
Mr. Young advised that the portion of the new cell left unscathed by the storm is projected to be ready by 
Thanksgiving. 
 
Upon motion of Supervisor Plaster, seconded by Supervisor Presley and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one voting against the same, the Tazewell County Board 
of Supervisors hereby authorizes the County Administrator to request an expedited review of the landfill 
construction permit from DEQ. 

 
Authorize County Administrator to request expedited review/inspection of landfill construction from DEQ 
Upon motion of Supervisor Plaster, seconded by Supervisor Presley and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one voting against the same, the Tazewell County Board 
of Supervisors hereby authorizes the County Administrator to request an expedited review of the landfill from 
DEQ. 

 
Authorize County Administrator to request expedited review of permit modification 
Upon motion of Supervisor Cruey, seconded by Supervisor Gillespie and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one voting against the same, the Tazewell County Board 
of Supervisors hereby approves a resolution authorizing the County Administrator to request expedited review 
of the permit modification, allowing the landfill to open the first portion of the cell. 

 
Diversion Update 
Ratify poll approving deposit at Mercer County Landfill 
Upon motion of Supervisor Hrovatic, seconded by Supervisor Plaster and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one voting against the same, the Tazewell County Board 
of Supervisors hereby ratifies a poll approving a deposit of $50,000.00 to the Mercer County, West Virginia 
landfill for the months of October and November. 

 
Ratify diversion of municipal solid waste to Mercer County Landfill effective October 7, 2024 
Upon motion of Supervisor Cruey, seconded by Supervisor Presley and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one voting against the same, the Tazewell County Board 
of Supervisors hereby ratifies a poll granting the County Administrator the authority to divert municipal 
 solid waste from Tazewell County landfill to Mercer County, West Virginia landfill. 

 
Ratify diversion of commercial solid waste from Tazewell County Landfill 
Upon motion of Supervisor Cruey, seconded by Supervisor Presley and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one voting against the same, the Tazewell County Board 
of Supervisors hereby ratifies a poll granting the County Administrator the authority to divert commercial solid 
waste from Tazewell County landfill if he deems diversion necessary 
 
Mr. Young stated that commercial solid waste has not yet been diverted because the County receives revenue 
from commercial solid waste disposal. 

 
  

12



Consider ratifying a poll to suspend building inspection 
Upon motion of Supervisor Presley, seconded by Supervisor Cruey and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one voting against the same, the Tazewell County Board 
of Supervisors hereby ratifies a poll to suspend building inspection requirements for AEP meter boxes installed 
in homes which lost power due to Hurricane Helene which were installed subsequent to October 5, 2024 and 
prior to January 1, 2025, pursuant the Board's October 1, 2024 Emergency Declaration. 
 
Mr. Young advised that this suspension was at the request of AEP, who granted a grace period for inspections 
provided they were done within the allotted time period to prevent cutoff.  

 
19/460 Corridor 
Mr. Young apprised the Board of a RAISE grant to study traffic issues on the US 19/460 corridor.  He stated 
that if recommendations for repairs were made in the study, the study can be used to go back again to US DOT 
to apply to have some of the issues repaired.  Several locations have been targeted as problem areas:  the 
crossover at PM Kwik Mart at Pounding Mill and the multiple entrances to Walmart, being two of them.  Mr. 
Young explained that a public meeting is required to hear comments regarding those safety issues.  He suggested 
that one of the meetings occur during the December 2024 Board meeting and the other by the end of 2024. 
 
  Upon motion of Supervisor Hrovatic, seconded by Supervisor Presley and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one voting against the same, the Tazewell County Board 
of Supervisors hereby a public meeting in connection with application for a RAISE grant to study traffic issues 
on the US 19-460 corridor. 

 
Lease of public meeting room 
Mr. Young advised that the public meeting room at the County Administration building is currently leased to 
FEMA on a temporary basis for their local Disaster Recovery Center. 
 
  Upon motion of Supervisor Presley, seconded by Supervisor Cruey and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one voting against the same, the Tazewell County Board 
of Supervisors hereby ratify a poll to lease the public meeting room to FEMA through December 6, 2024. 
 
Electrical line to Morris Knob 
Upon motion of Supervisor Gilespie, seconded by Supervisor Cruey and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one voting against the same, the Tazewell County Board 
of Supervisors hereby ratifies a poll to permit AEP to reestablish the power lines at Morris Knob at a cost of 
$6,800.00. 
 
Payment in lieu of taxes 
Mr. Young explained that each year Tazewell County waives the real property taxes on the CPRHA properties 

as the county’s contribution to public housing.  He said many grant applications require that the Couty 
demonstrate an annual contribution to public housing. 
 
Upon motion of Supervisor Presley, seconded by Supervisor Cruey and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one voting against the same, the Tazewell County Board 
of Supervisors hereby approves waiving the 2024 real property taxes on properties owned by CPRHA. 

 
Discussion regarding Tazewell SROs 
The Chairman directed that this matter be deferred until the December 3, 2024 meeting. 

13



 
Consider dissolving WSA 
Mr. Young explained that the WSA had a special called meeting and voted to dissolve the authority and to turn 
all remaining funds over to the BOS.  The Chairman suggested not to dissolve the authority at this time, citing 
possible new project through CPPDC that could potentially involve the WSA.  The Chairman tabled the issue. 

 
Richmond Legislative visit 
Mr. Young asked if any of the Board members were interested in attending the legislative reception and received 
no positive responses.  He did recommend meeting with state agencies at another time. 
 
Additional recovery court funding 
As explained by Mr. Young, additional funding has been requested by the recovery court for the purpose of 
purchasing machines that will provide drug test results within 48 hours, as is now required.  The cost of the 
machines is approximately $100,000.00.  The recovery court administrator has asked that each local county 
contribute toward the purchase of a machine to facilitate Virginia Tech testing the samples. Supervisor Gillespie 
stated that if and when a vote is taken, he felt he should abstain because he provides legal representation for 
defendants and serves on an advisory committee for the recovery court. 
 
Supervisor Hrovatic suggested the funding could come from the opioid settlement funds. 
 
No vote was taken, pending collection of additional information. 

 
Proposed mobile drug treatment units 
Mr. Collins shared information regarding mobile drug treatment centers.  He expressed concern about the 
myriads of things that can go wrong with mobile distribution of drug treatment. 
 
Supervisor Cruey shared his objections to the program. 

 
Consider surplus of 2012 Dodge truck VIN 3C6TD5CT5CG272703 
Upon motion of Supervisor Presley, seconded by Supervisor Plaster and adopted by a vote of 4 to 0, with all 
members present and Supervisor Cruey abstaining from the vote, the Tazewell County Board of Supervisors 
hereby approve the surplus of a 2012 Dodge truck VIN  3C6TD5CT5CG272703. 
 
2025 BOS meeting schedule 
Mr. Young asked for comments and/or suggestions from the Board regarding the meeting schedule for 2025.  
He advised the proposed dates will be added to the agenda for the December 2024 meeting. 

 
Other 
Mr. Young requested that the burn ban be extended for an additional two weeks. 
 
Upon motion of Supervisor Gillespie, seconded by Supervisor Plaster and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one voting against the same, the Tazewell County Board 
of Supervisors hereby approves extending the burn ban until November 21, 2024 if necessary. 
 

  

14



Appointments 
Fire/Rescue Board 
The Chairman directed that this matter be deferred to the December 3, 2024 meeting. 
 
Tourism 
The Chairman directed that this matter be deferred to the December 3, 2024 meeting. 
 
IDA 
Mr. Young stated that there is a member of the IDA that has only attended one meeting.  Supervisor Cruey 
offered to reach out to the member and report back. 
 

BOARD CONCERNS 
Supervisor Presley 
Sanders House 
Supervisor Presley asked that this matter be deferred to the December 3, 2024 meeting. 
 
Supervisor Presley stated he plans to meet with Bluefield, Virginia to discuss future storm preparedness. 
 
GHS wrestling donation 
Upon motion of Supervisor Presley, seconded by Supervisor Plaster and adopted by a vote of 4 to 0, with all 
members present Supervisor Cruey voting against, the Tazewell County Board of Supervisors hereby approves 
a donation to Graham Wrestling in the amount of $1,500.00 to be paid from Eastern District discretionary funds. 

 
Supervisor Plaster 
Richlands Police Dept 5K 
Upon motion of Supervisor Presley, seconded by Supervisor Plaster and adopted by a vote of 4 to 0, with all 
members present and Supervisor Cruey voting against the same, the Tazewell County Board of Supervisors 
hereby approves a donation to Richlands Police Department in the amount of $200.00 to be paid from 
Northwestern District discretionary funds as a sponsorship for the 5K training foundation. 
 
Voting districts on county lines 
Supervisor Plaster asked for clarification regarding voting district boundaries.   Mr. Collins explained that an 
individual is required to vote in the county in which he/she lays their head to sleep, not necessarily where their 
property lies. 
 
Upon motion of Supervisor Presley, seconded by Supervisor Plaster and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one voting against the same, the Tazewell County Board 
of Supervisors hereby authorizes the County Attorney to ask for an Attorney General opinion regarding voting 
districts as discussed in this meeting. 
 
Tazewell County Coalition 

Supervisor Plaster shared that she has been attending some community meetings and the group would like to 
form a “coalition” to be active in post-disaster response locally. 
 
Supervisor Cruey 
Supervisor Cruey stated that both he and his father attended the same high school in the same building more than 
50 years apart.  He stated that he supports the construction of a new school in the county. 

15



 
Supervisor Cruey spoke regarding Trails of Purpose, an organization that helps veterans with PTSD and other 
mental health issues and transition back to civilian life.  He said the organization is looking for some property in 
the county so they can move into the county. 
 
Supervisor Cruey thanked everyone involved in distributing water and other items during the recent storm.  He 
also thanked volunteers and EMS workers for their dedication in helping their communities. 
 
Supervisor Gillespie 
Legal representation regarding insulin litigation 
Supervisor Gillespie asked that this matter be deferred to the December 3, 2024 meeting. 
 

Purchase/lease vehicles for TCSO 
Supervisor Gillespie requested leasing at least two new vehicles for TCSO, stating that many of the current 
vehicles have mileage in excess of 150,000 miles on them. 

 
The County Administrator reminded the Board that the Board typically purchases four vehicles per year for 
TCSO.  He said that TCSO purchased six vehicles in 2024 with ARPA money eliminating need for additional 
purchases by the Board in FT25. 
 
Supervisor Hrovatic suggested referring the matter to the Budget Committee. 
 
Supervisor Gillespie asked the process to obtain bids/quotes for the vehicles. 
 
Mr. Young stated that bids are easily obtained but delivery time for the vehicles is more complicated.  He stated 
that if the landfill is finished on time, only a portion of the funds set aside for solid waste diversion will be 
needed, leaving approximately $150,000.00 which could be used for the vehicles. 

 
Supervisor Hrovatic 
Upon motion of Supervisor Hrovatic, seconded by Supervisor Plaster and adopted by a vote of 4 to 0, with all 
members present and Supervisor Cruey voting against the same, the Tazewell County Board of Supervisors 
hereby approves a donation to SWCC Educational Foundation in the amount of $2,500.00 to be paid from 
Western District discretionary funds. 

    
OTHER BUSINESS 
None. 
 
ADJOURN 
Upon motion of Supervisor Gilespie, seconded by Supervisor Presley and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0 with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one voting against the same, the Tazewell County Board 
of Supervisors hereby adjourns until Tuesday, December 3, 2024 at 4:00 pm. 
 
A copy teste: 

 
Andy Hrovatic, Chairman 

16



17



18



    
Consent Calendar Items 

December 3, 2024 Meeting 
 
 

 
Source        Check #       To Acct    Amt       Description 

VaCorp 625417 31020-6009 $3967.00 Damage to 2013 Taurus VIN 
4969 

Natasha Hunt 5008 73010-1150 $200.00 Library payroll reimbursement 
Zillow Group 20970 12090-6001 $250.00 R/E records from COR 

VaCorp 625631 32040-6009 $17981.98 2021 Ford ambulance damage 
VaCorp 624744 31020-6009 $5287.44 2020 Explorer VIN 2991 
CMCS 245898 31020-1150 $1679.67 CITAC overtime 

Dominion Auto 10356 31020-6009 $1015.00 Sale of TCSO 2010 Ford 
David Phipps 3517 091050-7041 $15,000.00 EMS donation 

C of VA 25811082 31020-5510 $337.54 TCSO travel reimbursement 
CoreLogic Solutions, LLC 7575385 12090-6001 $250.00 R/E records from COR 

Natasha Hunt 5016 73010-1150 $400.00 Library payroll reimbursement 
  

19



Ad Proof
This is the proof of your ad scheduled to run on the dates 
indicated below. Please proofread carefully and if changes 
are needed, contact us prior to deadline at (304) 327-2823 

or email at tevans@bdtonline.com.

DATE 11/18/24

Client:
TAZEWELL CO ATTORNEY
197 MAIN ST
TAZEWELL , VA 24651-0000
(276) 385-1208

 
 Ad ID: 838899

 Sort Line: TAZEWELL COUNTY BOAR

 Start: 11/20/24
 Stop: 11/20/24
 Complete 
 Schedule 11/20/24
 Total Cost: $74.90
 # of Lines: 92
 Columns Wide: 1
 # of Inserts:  2
 Ad Taker: TEVANS
 Phone # (304) 327-2823
 Email: tevans@bdtonline.com

Publications: 
Bluefield Daily Telegraph
bdtonline.com

ACCOUNT NUMBER: 107394

PO Box 1599 ,
Bluefield , WV 24701
Phone: 304-327-2801 • Toll Free: 800-763-2459
Fax: 304-327-0433 www.bdtonline.com 

Bluefield
daily Telegraph

TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

FIVE-YEAR UPDATE AND 
AMENDMENT OF

TAZEWELL COUNTY SOLID 
WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN

  PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the 
Board of Supervisors of Tazewell 
County, Virginia, will conduct a pub-
lic hearing on December 3, 2024 at 
6:20 PM, or as soon thereafter as 
may be practical, at the Tazewell 
County Administration Building, lo-
cated at 197 Main Street, Tazewell, 
VA 24651, and hereby gives its in-
tent to adopt a Major Amendment 
to the Tazewell County Solid Waste 
Management Plan.

  Pursuant to Section 10.1-1411 
of the Code of Virginia (1950), as 
amended, Tazewell County, Virginia 
(the County) is required to develop 
and implement a local solid waste 
management plan in accordance 
with the regulations of the Virginia 
Waste Management Board under 
the Virginia Department of Environ-
mental Quality (DEQ).  Pursuant to 
Section 9VAC20-130-130 of the Vir-
ginia Administrative Code, prior to 
submission of a Major Amendment 
to DEQ, the County is required to 
publish a Notice of Public Hearing 
and hold a public hearing on its Sol-
id Waste Management Plan.

  The County is requesting a Major 
Amendment for the following pur-
pose:

(1) Increase capacity of the Taze-
well County Landfill from Two Mil-
lion, Two Hundred Thousand Cubic 
Yards (2,200,000 CY) to Three Mil-
lion, Six Hundred Thousand Cubic 
Yards (3,600,000 CY).

  All persons wishing to comment 
on the proposed Major Amend-
ment to the Tazewell County Solid 
Waste Management Plan are here-
by invited to attend and state their 
views thereon.  In compliance with 
the Americans with Disabilities Act, 
if special assistance is needed 
to participate in a meeting of the 
Board of Supervisors, please con-
tact the County Administrator’s Of-
fice by telephone at (276) 385-1208, 
by facsimile at (276) 988-4246, or 
by email at susan.jewell@tazewell-
county.org.  A notification of five (5) 
working days before the meeting 
will enable the County Administra-
tor’s Office to make reasonable ar-
rangements to ensure accessibility 
to the meeting.

  A complete copy of the updated 
Tazewell County Solid Waste Man-
agement Plan, with Major Amend-
ment, is posted on the Tazewell 
County Circuit Court’s bulletin 
board on the second floor of the 
Tazewell County Courthouse, lo-
cated at 135 Court Street, Tazewell, 
VA 24651.  A complete copy of the 
updated Tazewell County Solid 
Waste Management Plan, with Ma-
jor Amendment, is also on file in 
the office of the Tazewell County 
Administrator, located at 197 Main 
Street, Tazewell, VA 24651.

By Order of the Board of Supervi-
sors of Tazewell County, Virginia
By: C. Eric Young, Tazewell County 
Administrator

20



Ad Proof
This is the proof of your ad scheduled to run on the dates 
indicated below. Please proofread carefully and if changes 
are needed, contact us prior to deadline at (304) 327-2823 

or email at tevans@bdtonline.com.

DATE 11/20/24

Client:
TAZEWELL CO ATTORNEY
197 MAIN ST
TAZEWELL , VA 24651-0000
(276) 385-1208

 
 Ad ID: 839175

 Sort Line: VDOTTraffic Improvem

 Start: 12/04/24
 Stop: 12/04/24
 Complete 
 Schedule 12/04/24
 Total Cost: $68.89
 # of Lines: 84
 Columns Wide: 1
 # of Inserts:  2
 Ad Taker: TEVANS
 Phone # (304) 327-2823
 Email: tevans@bdtonline.com

Publications: 
Bluefield Daily Telegraph
bdtonline.com

ACCOUNT NUMBER: 107394

PO Box 1599 ,
Bluefield , WV 24701
Phone: 304-327-2801 • Toll Free: 800-763-2459
Fax: 304-327-0433 www.bdtonline.com 

Bluefield
daily Telegraph

TAZEWELL COUNTY PLANNING 
COMMISSION

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION –

RAISE GRANT
UNITED STATES ROUTES 19/460 

TRAFFIC IMPROVEMENTS

  PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the 
Tazewell County Planning Commis-
sion (the Commission) is soliciting 
public comments on December 
12, 2024 at 6:45 PM, or as soon 
thereafter as may be practical, at 
the Tazewell County Administra-
tion Building, located at 197 Main 
Street, Tazewell, VA 24651, con-
cerning potential traffic improve-
ments to United States Routes 19 
and 460, in the Claypool Hill Com-
munity of Tazewell County, Virginia 
(the County).  

  The potential traffic improvements 
to United States Routes 19 and 460 
would include reconfiguration of the 
United States Routes 19 and 460 
split in the Claypool Hill Community 
of the County.  Additional improve-
ments would include reconfigura-
tion of turning lanes and crossovers 
in the Pounding Mill and Cedar Bluff 
Communities of the County.

  Those potential traffic improve-
ments would be funded by a Re-
building American Infrastructure 
with Sustainability and Equity Grant 
(RAISE Grant), supplied by the 
United States Department of Trans-
portation (USDOT) administered by 
the Virginia Department of Trans-
portation (VDOT).

  All persons wishing to comment on 
the potential traffic improvements to 
United States Routes 19 and 460, 
in the Claypool Hill Community of 
the County, are hereby invited to 
attend and state their views there-
on.  In compliance with the Ameri-
cans with Disabilities Act, if special 
assistance is needed to participate 
in a meeting of the Commission, 
please contact Tazewell County Ad-
ministration by telephone at (276) 
385-1254, by facsimile at (276) 988-
4246, or by email at stephanie.
russell@tazewellcounty.org.  A no-
tification of five (5) working days 
before the meeting will enable the 
Commission to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibil-
ity to the meeting.

  A complete copy of this Notice 
of Public Hearing is posted on the 
Tazewell County Circuit Court’s 
bulletin board on the second floor 
of the Tazewell County Courthouse, 
located at 135 Court Street, Taze-
well, VA 24651.  A complete copy 
of the Notice of Public Hearing is 
also on file in the office of the Taze-
well County Administrator, located 
at 197 Main Street, Tazewell, VA 
24651.

By Order of the Tazewell County 
Planning Commission
By: C. Eric Young,
Tazewell County Administrator

21



Ad Proof
This is the proof of your ad scheduled to run on the dates 
indicated below. Please proofread carefully and if changes 
are needed, contact us prior to deadline at (304) 327-2823 

or email at tevans@bdtonline.com.

DATE 11/20/24

Client:
TAZEWELL CO ATTORNEY
197 MAIN ST
TAZEWELL , VA 24651-0000
(276) 385-1208

 
 Ad ID: 839394

 Sort Line: TAZEWELL COUNTY BOAR

 Start: 11/22/24
 Stop: 11/29/24
 Complete 
 Schedule 11/22/24, 11/29/24
 Total Cost: $268.94
 # of Lines: 66
 Columns Wide: 3
 # of Inserts:  4
 Ad Taker: TEVANS
 Phone # (304) 327-2823
 Email: tevans@bdtonline.com

Publications: 
Bluefield Daily Telegraph
bdtonline.com

TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

  PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Board of Supervisors of Tazewell County, Virginia (the Board) will hold a public 
hearing on December 3, 2024, at 6:30 PM, or as soon thereafter as may be practical, in the Tazewell County Ad-
ministration Building, at 197 Main Street, Tazewell, VA, 24651, to hear comments regarding the Board’s intention 
to allow an exemption from full assessment of real estate taxation and/or personal property taxation for the real 
and/or personal property of Outside Dreams, Inc.  

  The parcels of real estate for which Outside Dreams, Inc. seeks exemption from full assessment of real estate 
taxes are as follows:

(1) Tax Map No. 113 A 0019;  Assessed Value: $89,400.00;  Annual Taxes: $518.52
(2) Tax Map No. 113 02 0001;  Assessed Value: $17,400.00;  Annual Taxes: $100.92
(3) Tax Map No. 113 02 0002;  Assessed Value: $18,100.00;  Annual Taxes: $104.98
(4) Tax Map No. 113 02 0003;  Assessed Value: $18,900.00;  Annual Taxes: $109.62
(5) Tax Map No. 113 02 0004;  Assessed Value: $18,400.00;  Annual Taxes: $106.72
(6) Tax Map No. 113 02 0005;  Assessed Value: $18,800.00;  Annual Taxes: $109.04
(7) Tax Map No. 113 02 0006;  Assessed Value: $18,300.00;  Annual Taxes: $106.14
(8) Tax Map No. 113 02 0007;  Assessed Value: $20,800.00;  Annual Taxes: $120.64
(9) Tax Map No. 113 02 0008;  Assessed Value: $19,700.00;  Annual Taxes: $114.26
(10) Tax Map No. 113 02 0009;  Assessed Value: $11,800.00;  Annual Taxes: $68.44
(11) Tax Map No. 113 02 0010;  Assessed Value: $26,900.00;  Annual Taxes: $156.02
(12) Tax Map No. 113 02 0012;  Assessed Value: $24,100.00;  Annual Taxes: $139.78
(13) Tax Map No. 113 02 0013;  Assessed Value: $21,400.00;  Annual Taxes: $124.12
(14) Tax Map No. 113 02 0014;  Assessed Value: $19,000.00;  Annual Taxes: $110.20
(15) Tax Map No. 113 02 0015;  Assessed Value: $28,800.00;  Annual Taxes: $167.04
(16) Tax Map No. 113 02 0016;  Assessed Value: $28,400.00;  Annual Taxes: $164.72
(17) Tax Map No. 113 02 0017;  Assessed Value: $29,000.00;  Annual Taxes: $168.20
(18) Tax Map No. 113 02 0020;  Assessed Value: $36,700.00;  Annual Taxes: $212.86
(19) Tax Map No. 113 02 0021;  Assessed Value: $27,300.00;  Annual Taxes: $158.34
(20) Tax Map No. 113 02 0022;  Assessed Value: $26,900.00;  Annual Taxes: $156.02
(21) Tax Map No. 113 02 0023;  Assessed Value: $25,200.00;  Annual Taxes: $146.16
(22) Tax Map No. 113 02 0024;  Assessed Value: $29,600.00;  Annual Taxes: $171.68
(23) Tax Map No. 113 02 0025;  Assessed Value: $55,600.00;  Annual Taxes: $322.48
(24) Tax Map No. 113 02 0026;  Assessed Value: $21,100.00;  Annual Taxes: $122.38
(25) Tax Map No. 113 02 0027;  Assessed Value: $22,200.00;  Annual Taxes: $128.76
(26) Tax Map No. 113 02 0028;  Assessed Value: $22,700.00;  Annual Taxes: $131.66
(27) Tax Map No. 113 02 0029;  Assessed Value: $34,300.00;  Annual Taxes: $198.94

Total Assessed Value:  $730,800.00
Total Annual Taxes:  $4,238.64

  Outside Dreams, Inc. desires to utilize the above referenced properties to provide an inclusive outdoor recre-
ational experience for people with disabilities, improving outdoor accessibility and fostering community engage-
ment, which will enrich the welfare of Tazewell County citizens.

  This Ordinance is authorized by Section 58.1-3651 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended.  The real estate 
taxation exemption would be for taxes on the real property and improvements thereupon.  The annual combined 
assessed value of all real estate parcels is be $730,800.00, effective January 1, 2024.  The total annual expected 
exemption would be $4,238.64.  The properties currently owned Outside Dreams, Inc. are subject to taxation.  
The exemption would be conditioned on use of the property for providing an inclusive outdoor recreational expe-
rience for people with disabilities, for charitable and benevolent purposes.

  A copy of the complete Ordinance as hereby proposed is on file in the office of the County Administrator at the 
above address and is posted beside the Tazewell County Circuit Court Clerk’s Office on the second floor of the 
Tazewell County Courthouse, located at 135 Court Street – 2nd Floor, Tazewell, VA 24651.

  Any persons wishing to comment on the proposed Ordinance may appear and be heard on the subject.  The 
Board may enact the Ordinance immediately following the hearing.  In accordance with the Americans with Dis-
abilities Act, if you are physically disabled, or hearing or visually impaired and need assistance at this hearing, 
please contact the County Administrator’s Office by telephone at (276) 385-1208, by facsimile at (276) 988-4246, 
or by email at susan.jewell@tazewellcounty.org.  

Per Order of the Board of Supervisors of Tazewell County, Virginia.
By: C. Eric Young - Tazewell County Administrator

ACCOUNT NUMBER: 107394

PO Box 1599 ,
Bluefield , WV 24701
Phone: 304-327-2801 • Toll Free: 800-763-2459
Fax: 304-327-0433 www.bdtonline.com 

Bluefield
daily Telegraph

22



Ad Proof
This is the proof of your ad scheduled to run on the dates 
indicated below. Please proofread carefully and if changes 
are needed, contact us prior to deadline at (304) 327-2823 

or email at tevans@bdtonline.com.

DATE 11/20/24

Client:
TAZEWELL CO ATTORNEY
197 MAIN ST
TAZEWELL , VA 24651-0000
(276) 385-1208

 
 Ad ID: 839172

 Sort Line: EMSStipend 2024

 Start: 11/22/24
 Stop: 11/29/24
 Complete 
 Schedule 11/22/24, 11/29/24
 Total Cost: $111.68
 # of Lines: 75
 Columns Wide: 1
 # of Inserts:  4
 Ad Taker: TEVANS
 Phone # (304) 327-2823
 Email: tevans@bdtonline.com

Publications: 
Bluefield Daily Telegraph
bdtonline.com

ACCOUNT NUMBER: 107394

PO Box 1599 ,
Bluefield , WV 24701
Phone: 304-327-2801 • Toll Free: 800-763-2459
Fax: 304-327-0433 www.bdtonline.com 

Bluefield
daily Telegraph

TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

AN ORDINANCE TO APPROVE A 
STIPEND FOR EMPLOYEES OF

TAZEWELL COUNTY
EMERGENCY MEDICAL 

SERVICES

  PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the 
Board of Supervisors of Tazewell 
County, Virginia, will conduct a pub-
lic hearing on December 3, 2024 at 
6:35 PM, or as soon thereafter as 
may be practical, at the Tazewell 
County Administration Building, 
located at 197 Main Street, Taze-
well, VA 24651, and hereby gives its 
intent to consider An Ordinance to 
Approve a Stipend for Employees of 
Tazewell County Emergency Medi-
cal Services.

  Section 15.2-1508 of the Code of 
Virginia (1950), as amended, re-
quires that a Board of Supervisors 
shall enact an Ordinance whenev-
er the Board of Supervisors seeks 
to provide payment of monetary 
bonuses or stipends to its officers 
and employees.  The Tazewell 
County Board of Supervisors de-
sires to authorize an award of a 
one-time stipend to all twenty-eight 
(28) employees of Tazewell County 
Emergency Medical Services, such 
stipends being One Hundred Fif-
ty Dollars ($150.00) each, totaling 
Four Thousand, Two Hundred Dol-
lars ($4,200.00).

  All persons wishing to comment on 
the Ordinance are hereby invited to 
attend and state their views there-
on.  In compliance with the Ameri-
cans with Disabilities Act, if special 
assistance is needed to participate 
in a meeting of the Board of Super-
visors, please contact the County 
Administrator’s Office by telephone 
at (276) 385-1208, by facsimile at 
(276) 988-4246, or by email at
susan.jewell@tazewellcounty.org.  
A notification of five (5) working 
days before the meeting will enable 
the County Administrator’s Office to 
make reasonable arrangements to 
ensure accessibility to the meeting.

  A complete copy of the Ordinance 
is posted on the Tazewell County 
Circuit Court’s bulletin board on the 
second floor of the Tazewell County 
Courthouse, located at 135 Court 
Street, Tazewell, VA 24651.  A com-
plete copy of the Ordinance is also 
on file in the office of the County 
Administrator, located at 197 Main 
Street, Tazewell, VA 24651.

By Order of the Board of Supervi-
sors of Tazewell County, Virginia
By: C. Eric Young,
Tazewell County Administrator

23



VIRGINIA:  AT AN REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF TAZEWELL COUNTY, 
VIRGINIA HELD AT THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, LOCATED AT 197 MAIN STREET, IN THE 
TOWN OF TAZEWELL, VA, 24651, ON THE 3RD DAY OF DECEMBER, 2024, THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION 
WAS ADOPTED, UPON A MOTION AND SECOND: 
 
Resolution No.: 24-022      Date:  December 3, 2024 
 

RESOLUTION HONORING CARTER CREASY 
 

WHEREAS, Carter Creasy (hereafter, “Mr. Creasy”) is a distinguished Tazewell County resident, who will 
graduate in the high school Class of 2025 from Tazewell High School in Tazewell, Virginia; 

 
WHEREAS, Mr. Creasy played the position of quarterback for the Tazewell Bulldogs football team, where he 

started forty-three (43) games during his varsity career, missing only two (2) games due to injury; 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Creasy’s immense natural talent and dogged work ethic allowed him to captain the 

Tazewell Bulldogs to four (4) consecutive seasons of five (5) or greater wins, the first time this feat has been 
accomplished at Tazewell High School since 1987; 

 
WHEREAS, Mr. Creasy’s adept leadership allowed the Tazewell Bulldogs to extend its playoff streak to six 

(6) consecutive seasons, which is a program record; 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Creasy’s prolific quarterback play allowed him to amass the following career statistical 

accolades, which will reside in the Virginia High School League (hereafter, “VHSL”) Record Book for years to come, 
cementing Mr. Creasy’s status as one of the greatest individual football players in VHSL history: 
 
(1) 839 career completions (VHSL record) 
(2) 13,098 career all-purpose yards (VHSL rank – 2nd) 
(3) 11,082 career passing yards (VHSL rank – 2nd) 
(4) 131 career all-purpose touchdowns (VHSL rank – 5th) 
(5) 104 passing touchdowns (VHSL rank – 7th) 
 

WHEREAS, Mr. Creasy’s accomplishments have earned him the following individual honors, which are 
incomplete as to his career at the time of the adoption of this Resolution: 
 
(1) 2023 All-Southwest District Team: 1st Team 
(2) 2023 All-Class 2, Region D Team: 1st Team; and 
 

WHEREAS, Mr. Creasy’s legacy at Tazewell High School and in Tazewell County, Virginia are not limited to 
his athletic achievements, but also include exceptional academic achievement and impeccable integrity and honor in 
conduct, which set an example for future Tazewell County students to aspire to and to be inspired by; 

 
NOW THEREFORE, upon motion of Supervisor Gillespie, seconded by Supervisor Cruey, the Tazewell 

County Board of Supervisors hereby RESOLVES to honor the career academic and athletic accomplishments of 
Carter Creasy by adoption of this Resolution, commending Mr. Creasy on his exemplary conduct throughout his 
career at Tazewell High School, and offering the best wishes of the Tazewell County Board of Supervisors in all 
matters that lie ahead.  This Resolution is adopted this 3rd day of December, 2024. 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 

              
K. Andy Hrovatic      C. Eric Young 
Chairman – Board of Supervisors    Tazewell County Administrator 

 
RECORDED VOTE: 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Cruey, Gillespie, Hrovatic, Plaster, Presley 
MEMBERS ABSENT: NONE 
AYES:    Cruey, Gillespie, Hrovatic, Plaster, Presley 
NAYS:   NONE 
ABSTENTIONS:   NONECar 

24



25



26



TAZEWELL COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
      (Three (3) Year Term) 

 
William B. "Pete" Vance     01-01-202 12-31-2026 
119 E.  Hillcrest Drive 
Cedar Bluff, VA  24609 
276-979-7707 
 
Bruce Remines       01-01-2022 12-31-2024 
327 Gulfport Drive 
Bluefield, VA  24605 
(Reappointed 12-03-2019) 
reminesb@yahoo.com 
 
Michael Hoops       01-01-2024 12-31-2026 
227 Church Street 
Tazewell, VA 24651  
276-329-8128 
mhoops@taztown.org 
(filled expired term of Christine Thompson) 
 
Andy Hrovatic       01-01-2024 12-31-2026 
P.O. Box 42 
Pounding Mill, VA 24637 
276-970-6431 
andyhrovatic@yahoo.com 
(Replaces the expired term of John David Cruey) 
 
Phillip Mohon       01-01-2023 12-31-2025 
276-971-0987 
(replaced James Pruitt – deceased) 
 
Danny Newman      RESIGNED 
P.O. Box 52 
Tazewell, Virginia 24651 
109 Hummingbird Hill 
Tazewell, VA 24651 
276-988-4082 
Paulineanddan66@gmail.com 
(fills unexpired term of Carolyn Barber) 
(Resigned on 9-23-2021) 
 
 

27

mailto:reminesb@yahoo.com
mailto:mhoops@taztown.org
mailto:andyhrovatic@yahoo.com
mailto:Paulineanddan66@gmail.com


Greg Smith        
PO Box 1446 
Richlands, Virginia  24641  
(**Appt. Town of Richlands**) 
 
Randall Hash 
212 Long Street        
Bluefield, VA  24605  
 (**Appt. Town of Bluefield**) 
 
Jerry Herron        
107 McCall Street 
Cedar Bluff, VA 24609 
963-3260 
(**Appt. Town of Cedar Bluff**) Appointed by the Town of Cedar Bluff to fill expired term of Wilma 
Sayers) 
 
Curt Gillespie        
2013 Kimball Avenue  
Bluefield, VA  24605   
276-322-3167 
(**Represents Town of Pocahontas**) (filled John Herald's unexpired term who resigned) 
 
Jim Talbert       01-1-2024 12-31-2026 
357 Brook Street 
Tazewell, VA  24651 
(**Appt. Town of Tazewell**)(replaced Jim French)  
 

28



CUMBERLAND MOUNTAIN COMMUNITY SERVICES BOARD 
(Three (3) Year Term) 

April Morefield  01-01-2021 12-31-2024
491 Tower Street 
Tazewell, Virginia 24651 
aprilmorefield@gmail.com 

Cathy McClanahan 01-01-2022 12-31-2024
812 Sage Hill Road 
Cedar Bluff, VA 24609 
276-245-0951
(filled expired term of Shane Clem)

Jared Smith 01-01-2024 12-31-2026
(Reappointed) 

29

mailto:aprilmorefield@gmail.com


COMMUNITY CRIMINAL JUSTICE BOARD OF SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY 
CORRECTIONS 

        (Two (2) Year Term) 
 
BOS Representative 
Crystal Crouse, General District Clerk   01-01-2023 12-31-2024 
135 Court Street, Suite 300 
Tazewell, Virginia  24651 
(County Representative) 
276-385-1269 
(Replaced Mike Dennis expired term) 
 
Darin Russell 
SWVA Community Corrections Director 
276-889-5862 
darinrussell@swvacc.net 
 

30

mailto:darinrussell@swvacc.net


COMMUNITY POLICY & MANAGEMENT TEAM 
        (FOUR (4) YEAR TERM) 
 
Shanna Plaster (BOS Representative)    01-01-2021 12-31-2024 
106 Suffolk Ave. 
Richlands, VA 24641 
276-971-2342 
 
Lori Gates Addison      Will and Pleasure of the Board 
Work Address: 
Cumberland Mountain Community Services 
P. O. Box 810 
Cedar Bluff, VA 24609 
Home Address: 
302 Gilmer Subdivision Road 
Lebanon, VA 24266 
276-971-2366 
lgates@cmcsb.com 
 
Melinda Smith       Will and Pleasure of the Board 
Tazewell County Public Schools 
Work Address: 
209 West Fincastle Turnpike 
Tazewell, VA 24651 
276-988-5511; ext. 2480 
Home Address: 
506 Jeffersonville Street 
Tazewell, VA 24651 
 
Ron Belay       Will and Pleasure of the Board 
1503 Hardwood Dr 
Blacksburg, VA  24060  
(Work) 276-921-3408 
 
Dr. Eleanor Cantrel      Will and Pleasure of the Board 
District Director, LENOWISCO and Cumberland Plateau Health Districts 
134 Roberts Avenue, SW 
Wise, VA 24293 
(Phone) 276-328-8000; ext. 81909 
(Fax) 276-376-1020 
sue.cantrell@vdh.virginia.gov 
 
Robin Boyd       Will and Pleasure of the Board  

31

mailto:lgates@cmcsb.com
mailto:sue.cantrell@vdh.virginia.gov


Clinch Valley Community Action, Inc. 
PO Box 188 
N. Tazewell, VA  24630
943 Cedar Creek Drive
Pounding Mill, VA 24637
(Work) 988-5583
rboyd@clinchvalleycaa.org

Arlene Matney   Will and Pleasure of the Board 
County Representative 
197 Main Street 
Tazewell, Virginia  24651 
(Work) 988-1206 

Bob Foley Will and Pleasure of the Board 
Associated In-Home Services 
PO Box 387 
Tazewell, Virginia  24651 

David Taylor, Director  Will and Pleasure of the Board 
Department of Social Services 
P. O. Box 149 
Tazewell, VA 24651 
(Work) 988-8554 

Barbie Matney (Parent) Will and Pleasure of the Board 
314 Bandy Road 
Cedar Bluff, VA 24609 

Patti Cettin Will and Pleasure of the Board 
TASK 
CVCA, Inc. PO Box 877 
North Tazewell, VA 24630 
Home Address: 
656 Tanager Drive 
Bluefield, VA 24605 
276-326-2094
cettin@comcast.net

32

mailto:rboyd@clinchvalleycaa.org
mailto:cettin@comcast.net


CUMBERLAND PLATEAU PLANNING COMMISSION DISTRICT 
   Citizen   (One (1) Year Term) 
   Elected Officials (Coincides with Elected Term of Office) 
 
Andy Hrovatic       01-01-2024 12-31-2024 
(Elected Official - BOS Member) 
PO Box 42  
Pounding Mill, VA 24637 
(Coincides with elected term of office) 
 
Michael Hoops       01-01-2024 12-31-2024 
(Elected Official – Town of Tazewell) 
227 Church Street 
Tazewell, VA 24651 
mhoops@taztown.org 
(Two (2) year term - coincides with elected term of office) 
 
F. Bradley Pyott      01-01-2024 12-31-2024 
(Citizen – Town of Tazewell) 
PO Box 718 
Tazewell, VA  24651 
 
Joe Blair McGlothlin      01-01-2021 12-31-2024 
(Elected Official – Town of Cedar Bluff) 
P.O. Box 71 
Cedar Bluff, VA 24609 
(Home) 276-963-3065 
(Cell) 276-971-0904 
 (Four (4) year term – coincides with elected term of office) 
(Replaces the expired appointment of Timothy Trent) 
 
J.R. Absher (Citizen)      01-01-2024 12-31-2024 
(Citizen – Town of Cedar Bluff) 
PO Box 190 
Cedar Bluff, VA  24609 
(One (1) year term - Citizen term) 
 
Aaron Gillespie       01-01-2024 12-31-2024 
(Elected Official – BOS Member) 
--- Claude St. 
Tazewell, VA 24651 
276-619-1825 
(Coincides with elected term of office) 
 

33

mailto:mhoops@taztown.org


Donnie Linkous 01-01-2024 12-31-2024
(Elected Official-Town of Bluefield) 
234 Wintercreek Drive 
Bluefield, VA 24605 
304-320-0142
linkous@bluefieldva.org
(four(4) year term – coincides with elected term of office)
(Replaced Don Harris)

34

mailto:linkous@bluefieldva.org


TAZEWELL COUNTY FIRE-RESCUE, INC. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
        (Two (2) Year Term) 
 
Jim Talbert, CVN/RNP      07-01-2024 06-30-2026 
PO Box 818 
Richlands, VA 24641 
(reappointed 6-4-2019) 
 
 
Michael Hymes       07-01-2019 06-30-2023 
PO Box 7 
Tazewell, VA  24651 
(fills expiring term of Kathern Dowdy) 
 
 
Frederick W. Harman      07-01-2020 06-30-2023 
201 East Main Street 
PO Box 523 
Tazewell, Virginia 24651 
988-5547 
(reappointed 6/2/20 for 2 yr. term) 
 

35



HEART OF APPALACHIA BOARD 
      (Two (2) Year Term) 

 
Rick Wood       01-01-2023 12-31-2024 
226 Floyd Ave. 
Richlands, VA 24641 
(Replaces expired term of Ginger Branton) 
 

36



INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (IDA) 
        (Four (4) Year Term) 
 
Darell Cantrell       07-01-2021 06-30-2025 
219 E. Hillcrest 
Cedar Bluff, VA 24609 
cdarell@gmail.com 
276-971-7037 
 (filled unexpired term of Marco Warner) 
 
Kyle Hurt       07-01-2021 06-30-2025 
349 Brandon Drive 
Bluefield, VA 24605 
276- 322-4695 
kyleh@mefcor.com 
(Oath taken 06-28-2017) 
(Oath taken 07/14/2021) 
 
Melanie Protti-Lawrence     07-01-2023 06-30-2027 
302 Marcus Drive 
Bluefield, VA 24605 
276-245-5515 
melaniepl@lbiweb.com 
(Fills the expired term of James Curtis Gillespie) 
(Oath taken 7-18-2019) 
 
Darrell Addison      07-01-2022 06-30-2026 
502 Lakepark Drive 
Richlands, VA 24641 
276-964-4195 
(Appt. 8-3-10)  
(Oath taken 07-18-2019) 
darrell24641@hotmail.com 
 
Mack Payne       07-01-2023 06-30-2027 
1565 Fincastle Tpke. 
Tazewell, VA 24651 
276-971-3119 
roger237@verizon.net 
(Fills the expired term and resignation of Monte Rife) 
(Oath taken 07-02-2019) 
 
 

37

mailto:cdarell@gmail.com
mailto:kyleh@mefcor.com
mailto:melaniepl@lbiweb.com
mailto:darrell24641@hotmail.com
mailto:roger237@verizon.net


 
Curtis W. Breeding      07-01-2024 06-30-2028 
PO Box 494 
Richlands, VA 24641 
276-971-7416 
(Reappointed 06-02-20) 
(Oath taken 07-15-2019) 
curtisbreeding50@yahoo.com 
 
Suzanne Brinegar      07-01-2024 06-30-2028 
200 Merrick Lane 
Pocahontas, VA 24635 
276-970-0282 
 
LIAISON - FARM BUREAU REPRESENTATIVE 
Rick Snapp 
7976 Burkes Garden Road 
Tazewell, VA  24651 
276-970-1136 
Snappdairy04@gmail.com 
(Appointed 4-3-2018) 
The Liaison Member is a non-voting, non-paid member and serves at the will and pleasure of the 
Tazewell County Board of Supervisors.  
 

38

mailto:curtisbreeding50@yahoo.com
mailto:rsayers56@gmail.com
mailto:Snappdairy04@gmail.com


NEW RIVER HIGHLANDS – RC & D COUNCIL 
        (One (1) Year Term) 
 
Tazewell County Representative 
Jack Asbury       01-01-2024 12-31-2024 
PO Box 139 
Bluefield, VA24605 
322-4152 
 
Contact: 
Wytheville USDA Service Center 
325 East Main Street, Suite E-2  
Wytheville, VA 24382 
276-227-0536 
www.newriverhighlandsrcd.org 
jcorvinnrhrcd@centurylink.net 
 

39

http://www.newriverhighlandsrcd.org/
mailto:jcorvinnrhrcd@centurylink.net


TAZEWELL COUNTY PUBLIC SERVICE AUTHORITY 
(Four (4) Year Term) 

Art Meade 01-01-2021 12-31-2024
PO Box 671 
Bluefield, VA 24605 
(filled resignation of Greg DeGray 2023) 

Richard Smith  01-01-2022 12-31-2025
207 Terry Drive 
Richlands, VA  24641 
New Peoples Bank 
276-202-2844
richardbethcatherinesmith@gmail.com
(Reappointed 12/5/2017)

J.R. Absher 01-01-2024 12-31-2027
PO Box 190 
Cedar Bluff, VA 24609 
troyabsher@yahoo.com 
(Cell) 276-971-1238 

Rhudy R. Keith, Sr. 01-01-2023 12-31-2026
5759 Baptist Valley Road 
North Tazewell, VA  24630 
(Work) 276-988-4746 

Sandy Etter  01-01-2024 12-31-2027
5317 Witten Valley Rd. 
Tazewell, VA 24651 
276-988-9654

Shanna Plaster  01-01-2023 12-31-2026
PSA Liaison 
(Will and pleasure of the board) 

40

mailto:richardbethcatherinesmith@gmail.com
mailto:troyabsher@yahoo.com


SOCIAL SERVICES BOARD 
(Four (4) Year Term) 

EASTERN 
Ms. Kim Allen 01-01-2024 12-31-2027
118 Pleasant View Drive 
Bluefield, VA 24605 
304-320-1114
Kimber.allen@gmail.com

NORTHERN 
Ms. Maggie Asbury 01-01-2022       12-31-2025
PO BOX 24 
Boissevain, VA 24606 
m_dasbury@comcast.net 

WESTERN 
Heather Riley  01-01-2022 12-31-2025
249 Alpaca Lane 
Cedar Bluff, VA 24609 
(filled Dwayne Sturgill resignation) 

NORTHWESTERN 
Phillip Foy 01-01-2023 12-31-2026
5449 Road Ridge Tnpke 
Raven, VA 24639 
206-954-7308
276-207-4963
Phillip.foy@cwa.tazewellcounty.org

SOUTHERN 
Debra White 01-01-2023 12-31-2026
3008 Clear Fork Road 
Tazewell, VA  24651 
276-988-3706
debrawhite34@gmail.com
(replaced Christine Thompson’s expired term)

SPECIAL INTERESTS REPRESENTATIVE 
Mark Mullins 03-02-2021 12-31-2024
1725 Baptist Valley Road 
Cedar Bluff, VA 24609 
1-606-922-4778

41

mailto:Kimber.allen@gmail.com
mailto:m_dasbury@comcast.net
mailto:Phillip.foy@cwa.tazewellcounty.org
mailto:debrawhite34@gmail.com


 
April Morefield        01-01-2021 12-31-2024 
491 Tower Street 
Tazewell, Virginia 24651 
aprilmorefield@gmail.com 
 
County Administrator       Ex-Officio 
197 Main Street 
Tazewell, VA 24651 
988-1202 (Work) 
 
David Taylor, Social Services Director II    Ex-Officio 
Department of Social Services 
P. O. Box 149 
Tazewell, VA 24651 
(Work) 988-8554 
 

42

mailto:aprilmorefield@gmail.com


SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
        (Four (4) Year Term) 
 
Extension Agent 
John Blankenship, Jr.      01-01-2021 12-31-2024 
P.O. Box 229 
Tazewell, VA 24651 
Phone: 276-988-0405 
Cell: 276-979-5711 
jblanken@vt.edu 

43

mailto:jblanken@vt.edu


TAZEWELL COUNTY 
TOURISM DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

(Established 12-16-2003) 
        (Two (2) Year Term) 

SOUTHERN 

Susan Reeves       07-01-2024 06-30-2026 
728 Fincastle Tnpke 
Tazewell, VA 24651 
276-970-1780 
 
Beth Takach       07-01-2023 06-30-2025 
279 Richardson Drive 
Tazewell, VA 24651 
(Filled the expired term of Tammy Allison) 
 
EASTERN 
Lee Riffe       07-01-2022 06-30-2024 
215 Hockman Pike 
Bluefield, VA 24605 
304-320-9746 
leer17@verizon.net 
(replaced the expired term of Michael A. Brown) 
 
David Comer       07-01-2024 06-30-2026 
1046 Virginia Ave. 
Bluefield, VA 24605 
276-245-6065 
 
NORTHERN 
Dedra Cox       07-01-2023 06-30-2025 
263 Mission Church Road 
Bluefield, VA 24605 
304-320-4353 
dedracox38@yahoo.com 
(Appointed on 08-03-2021) 
(Fills the expired term of Roger Scarberry) 
  

44

mailto:leer17@verizon.net
mailto:dedracox38@yahoo.com


Warren Hinkle        07-01-2024 06-30-2026 
4432 Baptist Valley Rd. 
Cedar Bluff, VA 24609 
warrenhinkletcfp@gmail.com 
 

WESTERN 
Sarah Romeo        07-01-2023 06-30-2025 
612 Indian Paint Road 
Pounding Mill, VA 24637 
276-963-4993 
(Replaced the unexpired term of Linda Singleton) 
(Reappointed on 08-03-2021) 
 
Brad Ratliff        07-01-2024 06-30-2026 
1053 Cedar Valley Drive 
Cedar Bluff, VA 24609 
276-522- 
Email:   brad@ratlifflaw.net 
 
NORTHWESTERN 
Rick Wood        07-01-2023 06-30-2025 
226 Floyd Ave 
Richlands, VA 24641 
(Logan Plaster - resigned) 
 
Keshia Cole        07-01-2024 06-30-2026 
118 Coleman Lane 
Tazewell, VA 24651 
276-971-5338 
 

45



TRAILBLAZER’S COMMITTEE 

(One (1) Year Term) 

Curtis Breeding  01-01-2024 12-31-2024
PO Box 494   
Richlands, VA 24641 
276-971-7416

46



SWVA ALCOHOL SAFETY ACTION PROGRAM POLICY BOARD (VASAP) 
(One (1) Year Term) 

One (1) County Representative: 

Chris Plaster 01-01-2024 12-31-2024
106 Suffolk Avenue 
Richlands, VA 24641 
chris.plaster@cwa.tazewellcounty.org 

47

mailto:chris.plaster@cwa.tazewellcounty.org

	ADP86AB.tmp
	AGENDA APPROVED AS AMENDED
	CONSENT CALENDAR
	RETURN/CERTIFICATION/REPORT OF ACTION – 6:47 pm
	ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION
	Supervisor Presley
	Supervisor Hrovatic

	ADJOURN

	ADPE1DE.tmp
	AGENDA APPROVED AS AMENDED
	CONSENT CALENDAR
	RETURN/CERTIFICATION/REPORT OF ACTION – 6:47 pm
	ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION
	Supervisor Presley
	Supervisor Hrovatic

	ADJOURN




